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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

Opinion

‘We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Saudi Arabian Amiantit Company (the
“Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statements
of profit or loss, eomprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies,

In our cpinion, the accompanyirg consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash fiows for the vear then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements adopted by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (ISAs). Our respensibilities under those standards are further described in
the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated fizancial statements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to the following matters:

- Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that these consotidated financial
stalements put the Group in breach of some of the financial covenanis stated in the credit facility
agreements with commercial banks. Management of the Group believes that the breach will not
affect the maturity profile of its debt or the availability of credit.

- Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the uncertainty related to the
estimation of impairment loss on trade receivables.

- Notes 14 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the dispute over the
Group's ownership of a parcel of industrial land in Jeddah.

Our opinion is not gualified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in owr professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated firancial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHQLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued)

Hey Audit Marters (continued)
The Key Audit Matter
Transition to IFRS

For all perdods up to and including the vear
ended 31 December 2016, the Group prepared
its financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“Local GAAP™).

As a result of a regulatory requirement in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Group changed
its financial reporting framework from Local
GAAP to International Financial Reporting
Standards. These conosolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
are for the first year for which the Group
prepares its financial statements in accordance
with  Intemational  Financial  Reporting
Standards (IFRS) adopted in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and other standards and
proncuncements adopted by the Saudi
Organization for Centified Public Accountants.

Accordingly, the Group has prepared
consolidated financial statements that comply
with IFRS applicabie as at 31 December 2017,
together with the comparative period data. In the
transition process, the management of the Group
and their management expert prepared a detailed
gap analysis to identify differences between
Local GAAP and IFRS. They also determined
the transition adjustments in light of this study
and assessed additional disclosure requirements.

We considered this as a key andit matter as the
first-time adoption of IFRS can have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on the transition process,
IFRS adjustments and reconciiiations between
Eocal GAAP and IFRS for comparative periods.
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How the matter was addressed in onr zudit

We performed the following procedures in
respect of the transition to IFRS:

- we assessed the appropriateness of
management’s adoption of [FRS 1t

- we assessed the compliance of the accounting
policies adopted with IFRS;

- weevaluated the gap analysis report prepared
by management and their management expert
and considered other differences which could
have an impact on the Group;

- we tested a sampie of adjustments made to
Local GAAP balances to bring them in Yne
with IFRS to ensure adjustments are properly
calcutated and recorded; and

- we assessed the sufficiency of disclosures
made ir relation to the first-time adoption of
IFRS.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)
The Key Audit Matter
Golng concern assumption

The Group has recognized a net loss of SR 91.5
million for the year ended 31 Decembar 2017
and as at that date, current iiabilities exceeded
current assets by SR 24,0 million. In addition,
the Group is in breach of cerain financial
covenants related to bank facilities. These
conditions could indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt as to the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

We considered this as a key audit matier
because, if for any reason the Group is unable to
continue as a going concern, using the going
concern assumption for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements will not be
appropriate.

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on the use of the going
CONCEIT assumption.

Impairinent of trade receivables

The gross balance of trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 amounted {0 SR 1,483.5 million
against which an impairment provision of SR
224.5 millicn was made, The collectability of
trade receivables is a key element of the Group™s
working capital management which is managed
on an ongoing basis,

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following procedures to
assess whether it is approprate or not for
management to  prepare  the  Group's
consolidated financial statements using the
going concern assumption:

- we ensured management performed an
assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern that covers the twelve-
month period following the reporting date.
The assessment was in the form of a twelve-
month cash forecast;

- we obtained zn understanding of, and
evaluated:

+ the process management followed to
prepare the forecast;

o the assumptions on which the assessment
is based: and

s management's plans for future action.

- we obtained written representations from
management regarding their future plans; and

- we assessed the adequacy of related
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statemnents;

The audit procedures we performed to assess the
reasonableness of the impairment of trade
receivables included, amongst others:

understanding and evaluating the Group's
processes relating to the monitoring of trade
receivabies and the review of customers’
credit risk and testing the design and
operational effectiveness of related conirols;

- ascertaining the accuracy of receivables
ageing reports;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued)

Hey Audit Matters {continued}
The Key Audit Matter
Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

We considered this as a key audit matter because
the assessment of the impairment of trade
receivables requires significant management
judgment whick in turn could significantly
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
provides information on significant accounting
estimates, note 8 provides information on credit
risk exposure and management and note 10
pravides information on trade receivables and
related impairment.

Fair value of interest acqguired in a joint
venture

Durirg 2017, the Group acquired a 50% interest
in a joint venture company by the name of
Amiblu Holding GmbH {* Amibiu™). The Group
acquired this interest by contribating five
operating subsidiaries and a technology center i
Amibin, The Group lost contzrol over these
subsidiaries and the interest in Amiblu was
initially recognized at fair value.

As a result, the Group recognized the interest in
Amibiu in the amount of SR 289.6 million and
recogrized profit on the deal of SR 63.6 million.

We considered this as a key audit matter because
of the complexity of the transaction and its
subjectivity 0 significant  management
estimation.

Note 2 to the consolidated financial staiements
provides detailed disclosures on the Amiblu
deal.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

- evaluating management assumptions used to
determine the trade recejvables impainment
amount, through detailed analysis of aging of
receivables and assessment of material
averdue balances; and

- assessing the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures on trade receivables and related
risks.

We performed the following procedures to
ensure the transaction is properly recorded in the
consolidated financial statements:

- we assessed the competency and experience
of the independent anditors of Amiblu;

- we have sent Group audit instructions to the
auditors of Amiblue and ensured their audit
scope includes the audit of fair value
calculations;

- we reviewed key decuments prepared by the
auditers of Amiblu upon finalization of their
audit which states, amongst other matters,
that they have engaged their valuation
experts to assess the reasonableness of the
fair value of Amiblue on the date of the
transaction;

- we recalculated the profit on the deal;

- we reviewed legal documents related to this
deat; and

- we assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures on this matter,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued)

Key Aundit Marters (comtinued}
The Key Audit Matter
Impaiviment of property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of
property, plant and equipment amounted to SR
500.4 million. During 2017, most of the Cash
Generating Units {(CGUs) of the Group had
impairment indicators due ic the significant
decline in sales and adverse external market
conditions. Management of the Group
performed its aonuval test of impairment in
December and concluded that the carrying
amount of one of the CGUs has suffered
impairment and recognized an impairmert loss
of SR 5.0 milion.

We considered this as a key audit matier because
the assessment of the recoverable amount of
CGUs requires significant management
judgment which in tumm could significantly
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Note 5 details significant accounting estimates
and note 14 details disclosures on property, plant
and equipment.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the following procedures in

respect of the impairment of property, plant and

eguipment:

- we ohtained an understanding of the Group’s
structure and CGUs;

- we assessed management’s process for the
identification of impairment indicators;

- we appointed an independent expert to
perform the following:

e assess the appropriateness of the
methodology used by management for the
calculation of recoverable amounss;

@ assess the reasonableness of management
assumptions; and

e ensure the accuracy of management
calculations.

- we assessed the adeguacy of the Group's
disclosures on impairment.

Other Information Included in the Group’s 2017 Annnal Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Group's 2017 annual report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our audit report thereon. Management is responsible for the
other information in its annual report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
noet express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n conrection with cur andit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in deing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Group’s 2017 annual report, if we conelude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

The Group’s 2017 annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued}

Responsibilities of Managenent and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Maragement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements adopted by the Saudi Organization for Certified
Public Acconntants, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unfess management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from matesial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an zuditor’s
report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

& Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
ercor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal coatrol.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going coneern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclesures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s repori. Hewever, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to comtinue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a2 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For Baker Tilly MKM & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Ayad Obeyan Alseraihi
(License No. 405)

Al-Khobar

1 Rajab 1439H
18 March 2018
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Jeint Stock Company)

CONSQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 1L.OSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

MNotc 2017 2016
SR 000 SR 000
(Note 4)
Continuing operations:
Sale of goods 547,584 1,116,342
Rendering of services 273,008 247,672
Total revenue 820,592 1,364,014
Cost of revenue (709,614 (1,249,607)
Gross profit 110,978 114,407
Selling, general and ad ministrative expenses 23 {133,397 (221,591}
Other income, net 2% 6,815 [9.952
Operating loss (15,604) (87.032)
Share of results of equity accounted investmens 13 923 {1,841)
Finance costs 27 (108,946} (101,096}
Loss before zakat and forcign income tax {123,627) (189,969)
Foreign income tax 18 478 {2,359
Zakat 18 23,619) {40.114)
Loss from continuing eperations {146,768) (232.434)
Discontinued operations:
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 2 55,222 7.003
LOSSFOR THE YEAR (91,546) {225.431)
Attributable to:
Shaeeholders of the Company (89,923) (232,920)
Non-contyoliing inrerests (E623) 7.489
(91,546) (225431)
Loss per share 50
Loss per share for the year atiributed (o the shareholders of the Company:
Basic (SR) (0.79) (2,05}
Dituted {SR} 0.79) 2.05)
Loss per share from continuing operations
Loss per share for she year from continuing operations attributed to the sharcholders of the Company:
Basic (SR) (2D (2.1
Diluted (SR} (1.28) (2.1
Weighted average number of shares sutstanding:
Basic ("000 shares) 113,564 113,564
Diluted ( 113,564 1i3.564

e f) "1/1’}‘1""’-/

Prince Ahmad Bin Khalid Al Saud
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Sofaiman A. Al-Twaijri D, AR I Kurdi
/" Chief Financial Qfficer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated lancial statements
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THE SAUDE ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Steck Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Note 2017 2016
SRR ‘000 SR ‘000
{Note 4)
Loss for the year (91,546) {225431)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified o
profit or loss in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 82,398 (27,892)
Clange in the fair value of interest rate swap 637 (2,143)
83,035 (30.035)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans 13 & 1% 1,610} (90}
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 81,425 (30,125)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 19,121y (255,556)
Attributable to:
Sharehiolders of the Company (9,568) {263,018)
Non-controlting interests {553) 7,462

{10,121) (255.556)

s T t - o M -
Prince Ahmad Bin Khalid Al Saud Dr. Sotaiman A. Al-Twaljri © . or Ammr K, Kurdi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer 7 Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes Tonn an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company}
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at
31 DPecember 31 December 1 January
Note 2017 2016 2016
SR 000 SR 000 SR 000
{Note 4) {Note 4}
ASSETS
Current asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 9 119,552 116,064 138,176
Trade receivables 10 795,519 946,645 1,237,617
Prepayments and other receivables 1 32,303 119,374 218,090
Inventories 12 742,856 873,613 1.223,887
1,740,230 2,035,696 2,817,770
Non-current asscls
MNon-current receivables HY] 463,465 526,868 496,348
Equity accounted iavestments 13 416,407 126,743 131,584
Property, plant and equipment 14 300,445 659,044 686,324
Other non-current assets 15 38,350 42 011 58,639
1,438,676 1,355,566 1,372,855
TOTAL ASSETS 3,178,906 3.411.262 4,190,665
LIABILITEIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 1] 1,002,785 1,141,93¢ 1,557,384
Current maturity of long-term borrowings 16 202,443 164,315 3,082
Accounts payable 203,385 192,363 378,170
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 17 196,063 238,468 290,286
Zakat and foreign 1axes payable 18 105,263 94,463 82,526
1,769,939 1,831,539 3,311,448
Non-current liahilitics
Long-term borrowings 16 320,409 465,563 426,728
Employees’ terminal benefits 19 66,609 67,019 66,816
Warranty provisions 20 8,378 19,419 13,338
Other non-current liabilities 15,544 17,304 19,966
410,937 569,305 526,848
Total liabilities 2,180,876 2.400.844 2,838,296
Equity
Share capital 22 1,155,000 1,155,000 1,155,000
Statutory reserve 189,472 189,472 189,472
{Accumulated losses} / retained earnings (217,941) {126,720) 164,058
Employee share ownership program and reserve 23 31,9149 (31.914) (31.914)
Change in fair value of interes! rate swap 24 {1,506) (2,143) .
Foreipn currency iranslation reserve (126,232) {209.241) (188,349
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company 966,879 474,454 1,293,267
Non-contrelling interests 31,151 33,964 57,102
Totsal equity 998,030 1.G10.418 1,352,369
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3,178,206 3411,262 4,190,665
® ’“} ”__)
N ;ﬁ———w ‘@%’i}?}"v

Prince Ahmad Bin Khalid Al Saud 0r, Solaiman A, Al-Twaijr /,,» )

Chairman Chief Executive Qfficer

< e, Anetftir K, Kurdi

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes form an imegrad part of these consolidated financial statements
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THE SAUD ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Note 2017 2016
SR0GH SR ‘000
{Note 4)
QPERATING ACTEVITIES
Less for the year 91,546) (225431)
Adjustments for non-cash ilems:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 62,969 62,599
Share of results of equily accounted investments {923) {8.094)
Deferred tax credits - 115
Zakat and foreign income tax charges 13,141 40,117
Employees' terminal benefits, net (1,780) 204
Warranty provisions, net (11,275) 6,088
Gain on disposal of the Dispesal Group 22 (63,596) -
Finance costs 108,946 101,006
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment T2

26,007 (23,313)
Changes in working capital:

‘Trade receivables (current and aen-curre) 101,821 260,620
Prepayments and other receivables 3,161 104,683
[nventories 78,630 350,274
Accounts payabls 62,993 {183,807}
Accrued expenses and other libilitics (9,244} (51,318}
263,368 454,639
Zakat and foreign income tax paid (12.341) {17.674)
Net cash generated from operating activilies 251,027 437,565
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds from disposal of the Disposat Group 22 4421 -
Cash proceeds from disposat of propery, plant and cquipment 603 -
Dividends received from equity accounted investments 2878 577
Purchuse of property. plant and equipment {21,45%) {56.330)
Net change in other nen-current assels 12,350 10.800
Net cash used in investing activilies {1,202) (44,333)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mavement in short-term borrowings {73,335) {415,446}
Net movement in long-term borrowings 464,143) 199,765
Dividends paid - {73,075)
Dividends paid to now-controlling interests - {400y
Gther changes in non-controlling interests - {14.243)
Finance costs paid (99,480 (301.096)
MNel change in other non-current liabilitics 2,351 (2.662)
Net cash uged in finaneing activities (234.607) (409.157)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 15218 (16,145}
Casly and cash equivalents ot the beginning ol the year £16,064 138.176
Cash and cash equivalents wanslerred with the Disposal Group 22 (21,191} -
Foreign currency twunslation cffeet on cash and cush equivalents 9,461 {5.967)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 119,552 116,064

Non-cash transactions:
Acquisition of 50% share in Amiblu in return for the Disposal Group

[
EXY

230,425 -

Prince Ahmad Bin Khalid Al Saud  —BF. Solaifisan A, Al-Twaijr * /7 Dr. Amsmr K. Kurdi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer /  Chief Financial Officer

The aceompanying aotes form an integral part of these conseliduted financial statements




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Saudi Arabian Amiantit Company (the "Company” or "SAAC") and its subsidiaries (coliectively referred to as the
"Group™) consist of the Company and its various Saudi Arabian and foreign subsidiaries. The Group is principally
engaged in manufacturing and selling various types of pipes and related products, licensing of related technologies, and
water management services including related consultancy, engineering and operations.

The Company is a joint stock company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration
number 2050002103 issued in Dammam on 17 Rabi' 1 1388 H (13 June 1968 G). The registered address of the
Company is P.0O. Box 589, First Industrial Area, Dammam 31421, Kingdom of Szudi Arabia. The Company's shares are
publicly traded on the Saudi Stock Exchange (“Tadawul”).

Following is the list of significant operating subsidiaries of the Group:

Ownership percentage as at

Principal Country of 31 December 31 December
Subsidiary activities  incorporation 2017 2016
Yo %
Amiantit Fiberglass Industries Limited (AFIL) A Saudi Arabia 100 100
Saudi Arabian Ductile fron Pipe Company Limited Saudi Arabia
(SADIP) A 100 160
Intemational Infrastructure Management and Operations
Company Limited (AMIWATER) B Saudi Arabia 100 100
Infrastructure Engineering Contracting Company C Saudi Arabia 100 100
Amiantit Rubber Industries limited (ARIL) A Saudi Arabia 80 80
Ameron Saudi Arabia Limited (ASAL) A Saudi Arabia 100 100
Bondstrand Limited (BSL) A Saudi Arabia 60 60
Saudi Arabia Concrete Products Limited (SACOP) A Saudi Arabia 100 100
Fiberglass Pipes and Ductile Fron Pipes Factory
Company Ltd (FPC) A Saudi Arabia 100 100
Flowtite Technology Bahrain W.L.L D Bahrain 100 100
PWT Wasser - und Abwassertechnik GmbH (PWT) ) Germany 100 100
Amitech Astana LLC A Kazakhstan 51 51
Amiantit Germany GmbH (note 2.2) A Germany 5.5 100
Flowtite Technology A.S. (note 2.2) D Norway - £00
Amitech Poland Sp.z 0.0. {note 2.2} A Poland - 100
Amiantit Spain (note 2,2) A Spain - 100
Amitech France (note 2.2) A France - 100
Amiantit Norway AS (note 2.2) A Norway - 160

A- Pipe manufacturing

B- Water management

C- Contracting

D- Research and development

The country of incorporation for these subsidiaries is also their principal place of business,

CHANGES IN THE REPORTING ENTITY

Acquisition of additional interests in ASAL and SACOP

On 15 June 2016, the Company executed a share purchase agreement with Ameron Inc. (“AI"), a U.S. based
corporation, whereby the Company acquired their non-controlling interests in Ameron Saudi Arabia Limited (“ASAL”)
and Saudi Arabia Concrete Products Limited (“SACOP™). The Company purchased 30.3% of the shares of ASAL and
41.2% of the shares of SACOP, thereby becoming the sole pariner of both companies, for total consideration of SR 1.9
million. The legal formalities for these transactions were completed during 2016, The consideration paid was less than
the carrying amount of non-coatrolling interests acquired of SR 31.2 million by SR 17.28 million. This difference was
recognized directly as an increase in retained earnings.

13



THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Foint Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)}
FOR THE, YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2. CHANGES IN THE REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

2.2 Amiantit - Hobas merger in Europe

On 15 December 2016, the Group publicly announced that it had signed a Memorandum of Understanding {(MOU) with
the Austrian holding company WIG Wietersdorfer Holding GmbH ("WIG") regarding a merger of its European pipe
manufacturing and sales companies and its Flowtite technology (the "Disposal Group") with the Hobas AG group of
comparnies. Furthermore, On 6 February 2017 the Company signed a joint venture agreement with WIG whereby its
Disposal Group will be merged with the Hobas AG group of companies in Europe under a Joint Venture {"Amiblu"}. On
28 August 2017, most of the legal formalities necessary for the closure of the merger and the foundation of Amiblu were
completed.

‘The Disposal Group comprises of the following entities:

Ownership percentage as at

Country of 31 December 31 December

Company name incorporation 2017 2016
Yo %

Amiantit Germany GmbH Germany 55 100
Flowtite Technology A.S. Norway - 100
Amitech Poland Sp.z o.0. Poland - 100
Amiantit Spain Spain - 100
Amitech France France - 100
Amiantit Norway AS Norway - 100

On 28 August 2017, the operations of the Disposal Group were deconsolidated and were presented as discontinued
operations. The business of the Disposal Group represented part of the Group's European operating segment
(geographical segment) until 28 August 2017, With these entities being classified as discontinued operations, their
respective operations are no longer presented as part of the European segment in the segment information note and the
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 duly re-stated.

The results of the Disposal Group for the period are presented below:

For the
period from For the year
1 January ended
2017 to 28 31 December
August 2017 2016
SR 000 SR 000
Revenue 257,850 467,931
Expenses (264,189) (452,401)
Operating (}oss} / profit (6,339) 15,530
Finance costs (561) {2,515)
Other expenses, net (1,355) (738)
(Loss)profit before tax (8,255) 12,277
Tax (119 (5,274)
(Loss)/profit for the pericd year from ordinary activities (8,374) 7,003
Gain on disposal of the Disposai Group 63,596 -
Profit after tax for the period / year from discontinued operations 55,222 7,003
Earnings per share from discontinued operations:
Basic {SR) 0.49 0.06
Diluted (SR) 06.49 .06




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2617

2, CHANGES IN THE REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

2.2 Amiantit - Hobas merger in Europe (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group as at 28 August 2017 were as foliows:

Assets

Cash and short-term deposits
Debtors

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Assets of the Disposal Group
Liabilities

Creditors

Interest-bearing liabilities
Liabilities directly associated with assets of the Disposal Group

Carrying amount of net assets directly associated with the Disposal Group

The net cash fiows incusred by the Disposal Group are as follows:

Operating
Investing
Financing

Net cash {ousflow)inflow

As at 28
__August 2017
SR '000
21,191
161,855
80,978
117,967
442
382,433
116,244
51,310
167,554
214,879
For the
period from 1
January 2017 For the year
to 28 August ended 31
2017 December 2016
SR '009 SR 000
10,901 58,585
(8,782) (13,233)
{23,633) (27,085)
(21,514} 18,267

As a result of the acquisition of a 50% share in Amibiu and the disposal of the Disposal Group, the Group recognized a
zain on the deal in the amount of SR 63.6 miilion and reported the gain under profit from discontinued operations. The

gain was calculated as follows:

SR "G00
Cash proceeds 4,421
Fair value of 54% share in Amiblu 289,600
Fair value of consideration received 294,021
Less:
Carrying amount of net assets directly associated with the Dispesal Group 214,879
Realization of the foreign currency transfation reserve directly associated with the Disposal Group 15,546

230,425
Gain on the deal 63,596

The fair value of the 50% share in Amiblu was calculated using the Discounted Cash Flows method. The sigaificant

unobservable valuation inputs are provided below:

Discount rate
Growth rate used in the calculation of terminal value

9.1% - 10.1%
1% -2%



THE SAUDI ARARIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.2

CHANGES IN THE REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)

Amiantit - Hobas merger in Exrope (Continued)

Furthermore, the share of results from Amiblu for the period from 29 August 2017 to 31 December 2017 amounting to
SR 15.3 million loss was recorded in the statement of profit or loss under share of results of equity accounted
investments (note i3).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 have beer prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
ather standards and pronouncements adopted by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants.

For all pericds up to and including the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia {"SOCPA" or "local
GAAP"™). These consolidated financiai statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 are for the first year for which
the Group prepares its financial statements in accordance with IFRS, See note 4 for information on how the Group
adopted IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals
which is also the functional currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (SR '000),
except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financiaf statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and ils subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017,

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from its invoivement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group contrals
an investee if, and only if, the company directly or indirectly has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing righis that give it the current ability to dirzei the relevant activities of the
investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to varizble returns from its involvement with the investee

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an iavestee, the Company <onsiders all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- Any contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the invesiee
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
- The Company’s voting rights and poteatial voting rights

The Company re-assesses whether or not it conteols an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the conselidated financial
statements from the date the Company gains control untii the date the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.



THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3.
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3.3
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each componeat of other comprehensive income ("OCI") are attributed to the shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controliing interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial staternents of subsidiaries to bring their accounting polictes
in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and fabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on conselidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction, If the Group loses control over a subsidiazy, it:
- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controiling interests
- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity
- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
- Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
- Reclassifies the Company’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit
or loss or refained eamings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabitities.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated financial
slatements:

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contraciually defined ferms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties. The Group assesses its revenue arrangemenis against specific criteria in order to determine
if it is acting as a principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangementis. The foliowing specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recogaised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on deivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of retumns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. The
Group provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs in ling with industry practice. A liability for potential
warranty claims is recognised at the time the produet is sold. The Group does not provide any extended warranties or
maintenance contracts to its customers.

Construction works

Revenue from construction works is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to actual costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.
When the contract cutcome cannot be measured refiably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered.

EXPENSES

Expenses related to operations are allocated on a consistent basis to costs of revenue, selling, general and
administrative expenses in accordance with consistent allocation factors determined as appropriate by the Group.



THE SAUDM ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)}
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

Zakat
The Company and its Saudi Arabian subsidiaries provide for zakat in accordance with fiscal regulations in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The provision is charged to the consofidated statement of profit and ioss.

Current forelgn income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expecied to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax Jaws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted, or substantively enacted at the reporfing date, in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the fax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interprefation, and it establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided for using the Hability method on temporary differences between the 1ax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amouats for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be contrelled and it is
probable that the temporary differences wilt not reverse in the foreseeable funre.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for: all deductible temporary differences; the earry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences. The carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utifised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferrad tax assets are reassessed at each reporting daie and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the couniries where the Group operates and is subject 10 income tax.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred ax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continned)

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and cireumstances change. The adjustment is either
treated as a reduction to goedwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it is incurred during the measurement
period, or recognised in profit or loss.

Sales and value added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales and value added tax, except:

- Where the sales or value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

- Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales and value added tax included

The net amount of sales or value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of recetvables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consclidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three menths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - INITIAL RECOGNITION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
A financial instnzment is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

) Financial assets

Initial recognitien and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, AFS investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate, The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and receivables

Lozns and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate ("EIR") method, less impairment, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in selling, general and
administrative expenses for receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - INITIAL RECOGNITION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
{Continued)

&) Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through® arrangement, and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group bas neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and, to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferzed control of it, the
asset is recognised to the extent of its continuing invelvement in it. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that sakes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

iy Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or & group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in making
payments, the probability that they wiil enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicates that ihere is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

ifi} Finaneial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

20
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - INITIAL RECOGNITION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT
{Continued)

iit) Financial liabilities (continued)

Eoans and borrewings

After initial recogaition, interest bearing leans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and fosses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the conselidated statement of profit
or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing foans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancefled or expires,
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of prefit or loss.

iv) Offseiting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position enly if there is a current enforceable fegal right to offset the recognised amounts and an intent to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

LEASES

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets or the arrangzement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior fo 1 January 2016, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2016 in
accordance with IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Reporting Standards.

Gronp as a lessee

Finance leases that transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits ineidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and a
reduction in the iease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance ¢harges are recognised in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the usefui life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is 2 lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows:

Raw materials:
- Purchase cost on a weighted average basis.

Finished goods and work in progress:
- Cost of direct materials ard labour and a proportien of manufiacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Initial cost of raw materials includes the transfer of gains and [osses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in
other comprehensive income, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell.

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contrel of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing controi.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Sigaificant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating poticy decisions of the investee, but is not conirol or joint control over
those policies.

The considerations taken in determining whether significant influence or joint control exists, are simitar fo those
necessary to determing control over subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or joint veniure is initialiy recognised at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint
venfure since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating te the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or
joint venture, Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCL In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associaie or jeint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controtling interests
in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates or joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting peried as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss
on its investment. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investments in the associates or joint ventures are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calcufates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverabie amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying vaiue
and recognises the loss as part of “share of results of equity accounted investments' in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant infiuence, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment a its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the investment upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
remaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumalated impairment losses, if
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition eriteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be teplaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Land and buildings are measured at cost, less accumuiated depreciation on baildings, and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

~  Buildings and fand improvements - 3 to 35 years
- Piant, machinery and equipment - 4 to 25 years
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 3 to 8§ years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derccognised upon disposal or when no future econemic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or Joss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, 1seful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset, All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at the acquisition date fair valug, and the amount of
any non-controtling interests in the acquiree. The Group measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifizble net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and
included in adminisirative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the ceatractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation: of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. All
contingent consideration (except that which is classified as equity} is measured at fair value with the changes in fair
value in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of
the riet identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of
the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and al} of the liabilities assumed, and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised
at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net asseis acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating umits ("CGU") that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespsctive of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assipned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwilt disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operasion and the portion of the CGU retained.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Intemally generated intangible assets are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the conselidated statement
of profit or loss when it is incurred.

The usefisl lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is any indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected usefill life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or toss in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the CGU level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in usefu! life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Rescarch and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be avaitable for use or sale

- Its intention to complete and its ability to use or seil the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset 10 be carried at cost fess any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefits. Amortisation is recorded in cost of revenue. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annuaily.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverabte amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, urless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets in which case the impairment is tested at
the CGU level. Where the casrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing vaiue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These caiculations are corroborated by
vatuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries, or other availabte fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detaifed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each
of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are
generally covering a period of five years. A [ong-term growth rate is caleufated and applied to project future cash
flows afier the fifth year.,

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recogaised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amotnt. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairmens loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that wouid have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years., Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the camrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of ¢ach CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised, Impairment losses relating to goodwill eannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets
[ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annualiy as at 31 December either individually
or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

PROVISIONS

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, Where the Group expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a pravision is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss act of any reimbursement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

PROVISIONS (Continued)
General (Continued)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the inerease in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty praovisions
Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-refated costs is revised annually.

EMPLOYEES' TERMINAL BENEFITS
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit method.

Re-measuremenis, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCE in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; or
- The date on which the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Hability or asset. The Group

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under *cost of revenue’, ‘selfing, general and

administrative expenses” in the consofidated statement of profit or loss {by function):

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements;

- Net inierest expense or income,

STATUTORY RESERVE

As vequired by the Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, the Company transfers 10% of its profit for the year
t0 a statutory reserve until the reserve equals 30% of the share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution as
dividends.

CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification, An asset is current when it is:

«  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at feast twelve
months after the reporting pericd.

Alfl other assets are classified as non-current.

A ligbility is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in the neymal operating cycle;

- tis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and iabilities.
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SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Group measures financial instruments, such as financial derivatives, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to self the asset or transfer the Hability takes place cither:

- Inthe pringipal market for the asset or liability; or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principat or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liabifity, assuming that market participants act in their econcmic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits from the asset’s highest and best use or by selling it 1o another market participant that would
utilise the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and Habilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between [evels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

The Group’s Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for
nonrecurring measurement.

At each reporting date, the Management anajyses the movements in the values of assets and Habilities which are
required 1o be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group®s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
contracts and other relevant documents,

The Management also compares the change in the fair vaive of each asset and lability with relevant external sources
to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained
above.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyal, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items inciuded in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of
consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the
amount that arises from using this method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency
spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary ilems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value &5 determined, The gain or loss
ariging on franslation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain ar
loss on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCE or profit or loss are aiso recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Group comparnies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are #ranslated into Saudi Riyals at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their consolidated statements of profit or loss are translated at
exchange rates prevailing al the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are
recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is ergaged either in providing products or services (a
business segment} or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment {a geographic
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different fraom those of other segments.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their canying amounis will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets and Disposal
Groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cosis to seli.
Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the sale, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.

The criteria for held for sale ¢lassification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
Disposal Group is available for immediate saie in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be
withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A Disposal Group qualifies as a discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been dispesed
of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

- Represents a separate major line of business or geographiezl area of operations

- Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations

- Or it is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount
as profit or loss afier tax from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. All other notes
to the consolidated financial statements include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.
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FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS

These consolidated financizl stalements, for the year ended 31 December 2017, are for the first year for which the Group
prepares its financial statements in accordance with IFRS. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with Local GAAP.

Accordingly, the Group has prepared consolidated financial statements that comply with IFRS applicable as at 3%
December 2017, together with the comparative period data. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s opening consolidated statement of Gnaneial position was prepared as at 1 January 2016, the Group’s date of
transition to IFRS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its Local GAAP
financizl statements, including the consolidated statement of financial position as at | January 2016 and 31 December
2016 and the consolidated statements of profit and loss, comprehensive income and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Exemptions applied
IFRS 1 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under
IFRS.

The Group has utilized the following exemptions:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations has not been applied 1o either acquisitions of subsidiaries that are considered
businesses under IFRS, or acquisitions of interests in associates and joint ventures that occurred before 1 January
2016, Use of this exemption means that the Local GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required
to be recognised under IFRS, is their deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition,
measurement is in accordance with IFRS. Assets and liabilities that do not qualify for recognition under [FRS are
excluded from the opening IFRS consolidated statement of financial position.

IFRS | also requires that the Local GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the opening IFRS
consolidated statement of financial position (apart from adjustments for goodwill impairment and recognition or
derecognition of intangible assets). In accordance with IFRS 1, the Group has tested goodwill for impairment at the
date of transition to IFRS. No goodwill impairment was deemed necessary at 1 January 2016,

- The Group has not applied 1AS 21 retrospectively to fair value adjustments and goodwill from business
combinations that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS, Such fair value adjustments and goodwill are
treated as assets and liabilities of the Company rather than as assets and liabilities of the acquiree. Therefore, those
assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional currency of the Company and no
further translation differences occur.,

- The Group has applied the transitional provisions in IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease and has assessed afl arrangements based upon the conditions in place as at the date of transition.

- The Group has applied the transitional provisions in IAS 23 Borrowing Costs and capitalises borrowing costs
relating to all qualifying assets afier the date of transition. Similarly, the Group has not restated borrowing costs
capitalised under Local GAAP on qualifying assets prior to the date of transition to [FRS.

Estimates

The estimates at 1 January 2016 and at 31 December 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with Local GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart from
‘Employees' terminal benefits' where application of Local GAAP results in different estimates.

The estimates used by the Group to present these amounts in accordance with IFRS reflect conditions at | January 2016,
the date of transition to IFRS and as at 31 December 2016.
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4.  FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS {Continued)
Group reconciliation of equity as at 1 January 2016 {date of transition to IFRS):

IFRS as at
Local GAAP Remeasurements 1 January 2016
ASSETS Notes SR '000 SR '000 SR '00¢
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents A 166,501 (28,325} 138,176
Trade receivables ABE 1,401,059 (163,442) 1,237,617
Prepayments and other receivabies AL 256,647 (38,557 218,090
Inventories A 1,276,130 (52,243) 1,223,887
3,100,337 (282,567 2,817,770
Non~current assets
Non-current receivables B 639,991 (143,643) 496,348
Equity accounted investments A 127,923 3,661 131,584
Property, piant and equipment A 728,308 (41,984) 686,324
Other non-current assets A 47,946 10,693 58,639
1,544,168 (171.273) 1,372,893
TOTAL ASSETS 4,644,505 (453,840) 4,190,665
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short=term borrowings A 1,618,177 {60,793} 1,557,384
Current maturity of long-term borrowings A 18,560 {15,478) 3,082
Accounts payable A 528,844 (150,674) 378,170
Accrued expenses ard other liabilities A 120,899 (30,613) 290,286
Zakat and taxes payable A 9(,882 (8,363) 82,526
2,577,369 {265,921) 2,311,448
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 426,728 - 426,728
Employees' terminal benefits AD 78,743 (11,927) 66,816
Warranty provision 13,338 - 13,338
Other non-current Habilities 19,966 - 19,966
538,775 (11,927) 526,848
Total liabilities 3,116,144 (277,848) 2,838,296
Equity
Share capital 1,135,000 - 1,135,000
Statutory reserve 189,472 - 189,472
Retained carnings B,D.E 332,190 (168,132) 164,058
Employee share ownership program and reserve (31,914) - (31,914}
Foreign currency translation reserve (181,349) - (181,349}
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the
Company 1,463,399 (168,132) 1,295,267
Non-controliing interests AD 64,065 {7.863) 57,102
Total equity 1,528,364 (175,995) 1,352,369
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,644,508 (453,843) 4,190,665
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued)

Group reconciliation of eguity as at 31 December 2016:

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents A
Trade receivables AB.E
Prepayments and other receivables AL
Enventories A

Non-current assets

Non-current receivables B.E
Equity accounted investments A
Property, piant and equipment A
Other non-current assets A

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities

Short-tenn borrowings A
Current maturity of long-term borrowings
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Zakat and taxes payable

o

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings A
Employee terminal benefits AD
Warranty provision

Other non-current liabifities

Total Liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Statutory reserve
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) B,D,EF
Employee share ownership program and reserve
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Foreign currency translation reserve
Equity attributable to the sharcholders of
the Company
Non-controlling interests AD
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

31

IFRS as at 31

Local GAAP Remeasurements  December 2016
SR '"040 SR 000 SR '000
122,522 (6,458) 116,064

1,193,786 (247,141) 946,645
172,803 (53,429) 119,374
918,383 {44,770) 873613

2,407,494 {351,798) 2,055,696
565,529 (38.661) 526,868
122,540 4,203 126,743
693,998 (34,954) 659,044

31,594 11,317 42911

1,413,661 (38,093) 1,355,566

3,821,155 (409,893) 3,411,262

1,160,387 (18,457} 1,141,930
164,414 99) 164,315
353,796 (161,433} 192,363
232,142 (13,674} 238,468

96,493 {2,030} 94,463
2,027,232 (195,693} 1,831,539
520,637 {55,074) 465,563
72,718 {5,699) 67,019
19,419 - 19,419
17,304 - 17,304
630,078 {60,773} 569,305

2,657,310 {256,466) 2,400,844

1,155,000 - 1,155,000
189,472 - 189,472

21,800 (148,520) {126,720)
(31,014 - (31,914
(2,143) - (2,143)
(209,241) - (209,241)
1,122,974 (148,520) 974,454
40,871 (4,507 35,964
1,163,845 (153,427) 1.050.418
3,821,155 (409,893) 3.411,262




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued)

Group reconciliztion of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2016:

Continuing operations:
Sale of goods
Rendering of services

Total revenue

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Selling, generai and administrative expenses
Other income, net

Operating loss

Share of results of equity accounted investments
Finance costs

Laoss hefore zakat and foreign

income tax

Foreign income #ax
Zakat
Loss from confinuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Profit afler tax from discontinued operations

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
fo profit or loss in subsequent years:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Change in the fair value of interest rate swap

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified

1o profit or loss in subsequent years:

Remeasurement loss on defired benefit plans
Other comprehensive foss

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE YEAR

IFRS for the
year ended 31

Local GAAP Remeasurements  December 2016

Notes SR 000 SR 000 SR 000
A 1,423,243 (306,901) 1,116,342
247,672 - 247,672

1,670,915 (306,901) 1,364,014

AE (1,534,418} 284,811 (1,249,607
136,497 (22,650) 114,407

AF {245,223) 23,832 {221,391)
AE 930 9,087 10,017
{107,796) 10,829 {96,967

A 5,729 2,365 8,094
A {108,744) 7,648 (101,096)
(210,811} 20,842 (189,969)

A (2,367) 16 (2,351)
(40,114) - (40,114}

(253,292) 20,858 (232,434)

7,003 - 7,003

(246,289) 20,858 {225.431)

(27,892) - (27,892}

(2,141) - {2,143}

(30,035) - (30,035)

D - (90) o0
{30,035) 20) (30,125)

(276.324) 20,768 (255,556)




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Foint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4,  FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued)

Group reconciliation of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2016: IFRS for the
year ended 31
Local GAAP Remeasurements  December 2016
SR '000 SR 000 SR '088
QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (246,289) 20,858 {225,438)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 114,353 (51,754) 62,599
Share of results of equity accounted investments {5,729y (2,363) (8,094)
Deferred tax credits 115 - 115
Zakat and foreign income taxes 47,754 {7.637) 40,117
Warranty provisions, net 6,081 - 6,081
Employees terminal benefits, net (6,025) 5,229 204
Finance costs 101,096 - 101,096
11,356 (34,669} (23,313)
Changes in working capital:
Trade receivables (current and non-current) 282,619 {21,999} 260,620
Prepayments and other receivables 83,844 20,832 104,683
Inventories 357,747 (7473 350,274
Accounts payable (175,048) {10,759} (185,807
Acerued expenses and other [iabilities (68,757) 16,939 {51,818)
491,761 (37,822) 454,639
Zakat and foreign income tax paid (42,150) 25,076 (17,074)
Net cash generated from operating activities 449611 (12,046) 437,565
INVESTING ACTEVITIES
Dividends received from equity accounted investments 0977 - 977
Puzchase of property, plant and equipment (72,817} 16,487 (56,330}
Intangible assets acquired {1,838} 281 957y
Net change in other non-current assets - 11,757 11,757
Net cash used in investing activities (73.678) 29,125 {44,353)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Movement in short-term borrowings (457,790) 42,344 {415,446)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings, net 239,763 (39,998) 199,765
Dividends paid {75,075) - (75,075)
Dividends patd to non-controiling interests (400) - (400)
Board remuneration fees paid (1,800 1,800 -
Other changes in non-controlling interests (12,742) {1,501y (14,243)
Finance costs paid (101,096} - (101,096)
Net change in other non-current Habitities (4,805) 2,143 (2,662)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (413,945) 4,788 (409,157)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (38,012) 21,867 (16,143}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 166,501 (28,325) 138,176
Foreign currency translation effect (5,967) - {5,967}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR 122,522 (6,458) 116,064




THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4.

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS {Continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2016:

A. Basis of consolidation
Under Local GAAP, the Group consolidated a subsidiary when it owned the majority of its equity. Under IFRS, the
Group consolidates a subsidiary when it obtains ‘control’ over the subsidiary. As a result, the Group deconsotidated
a subsidiary in Europe ("the deconsolidated company") from the date of transition and accounted for its interest in
the deconsolidated subsidiary as an investment in a joint venture.

The following is a summary of the deconsolidated company’s financial position as at 1 January 2016 and 31
Blecember 2016:

31 December 1 January
2016 2016
SR 000 SR 000
Asseis
Current assets 245,661 250,231
Non-current assets 34,954 41,985
Total assets 280,615 292,216
Liabilities
Current liabilities (202,506) (273,343)
Non-current lizbilities {71,352) (13,152)
Total liabilities (273.858) {286,493)
Net assets 6,757 5,721

The following is 2 summary of the deconsolidated company's profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016:

Year ended 31
December 2016
SR 000

Revenue 306,001
Gross profit 51,759
Net profit 3.857

B. Trade receivables
Previously, trade receivables were presented at their nominal amounts as current assets, Under IFRS, trade
receivables which are expecied 1o be collected beyond twelve months from the date of the consolidated statement of
financial position are presented at their net present values as non-current assets. 1AS 39 require financial assets of' a
long-term nature fo be discounted and recognized at their net present values using a reasonable discount rate. The
difference between the nominal amounts and net present values of trade receivables as at | January 2016 amounted
t0 SR 116.1 million and was charged to retained earnings.

C. Investment properties
As per IAS 40 requirements, Jand valued at SR 8.25 million owned by the Group and not currently or expected o be
used in operations was reclassified as investment property. Therefore, there is ao impact on equity as a result of this
change.
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi foint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Centinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4

FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (Continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued):

D. Defined benefit obligation

Under Local GAAP, the Group recognised costs related to its employees’ terminal benefits by caleulating the
obligation using current salary Jevels and assuming all contracts are terminated by the Group. Under [FRS, terminal
benefits are recognised using the projected unit credit method. The required obligation under IFRS as at 1 January
2016 was tess by SR 9.1 million and the difference has been recognised against retained eamings. The difference of
SR 2.6 million as at 31 December 2016 has been recognised in the consolidated statement of prefit or loss and the
remeasurement differences as at 31 December 2016 of SR 90 thousands has been recognised in retained earnings
through OCL

E. Losses on onerous contracts
This adjustment relates to the effect of remeasiring the provision related to future Josses to be recognized on certain
projects with negative margins in Iraq and Turkey. Under Locai GAAP, the Group used to measure such provisions
using the most likely scenario for fulure possible outcomes, However, under IAS 37, the Group revised its
assumptions taking 2 weighted average calculation of the various scenarios and their probabilities to reach the
expected value of the outcome. As at 1 January 2016, the Group recognized an additional provision for SR 61.1
miltion.

F. Board of directors' remuneration
This adjustment relates 1o the effect of classifying board of directors' remuneration as selling, general and
administrative expenses under IFRS. Under Local GAAP, the Group used to recognize such expenditure as a direct
deduction from retained earnings. Accordingly, directors' remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounting to SR 1.8 million has been recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or foss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disctosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncerfainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require 2 material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or Habilities affected in future pericds.

Other disciosures refating to the Group's exposure to risk and uncertainties includes:

- Capital management Note 7

- Financial instruments risk management and policies Note 8

- Sensitivity analysis disclosures WNotes 5, 8and 19
Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Gleing concern busis of accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Group wili
be able to meet the mandatory repayment terms of its trade payables and bank facilities as disclosed in note 16.

The Group has recognized a net loss of SR 91.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 and as at that date,
current liabitities exceeded current assets by SR 29.7 miilion. In addition, the Group is in breach of certain financial
covenants related to bank facilities as disclosed in note 16.

Furthermore, bank facilities are subject to renewal every year, The lenders are expected to undertake a review, which
wil} include, inter alia, an assessment of:

- The financial performance of the Group against budget
- The progress of planned new product offerings
- The Group’s ability to win major anticipated bids

L
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5.
5.1

5.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Judgements (Continned)
Going concern basis af accounting (Continued)

Management believes that the repayment of the trade payables and bank facilities wiil occur as required and is confident
that its cash flows from operating activities, in addition to existing unutilized credit facilities, wil be sufficient to meet
the repayment requirements as they fall due duriag 2618.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key seurces of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant tisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Uncertain zakat and fex positions

The Group’s current zakat and tax payable of SR 105.3 million relates to management’s assessment of the amount of
zakat and tax payable on open zakat and tax positions where the liabilities remain to be agreed with refevant tax
authorities. Uncertain zakat and tax items for which a provision of SR 23.1 million is made refate principally to the
interpretation of zakat and tax legislation applicable to arrangements entered into by the Group. Due to the uncertainty
associated with such zakat and tax items, it is possible that, on conclusion of open zakat and tax matters at a future date,
the final outcome may differ significantly.

Lmpairsent of non-financial assets

The Group’s cash generating units (CGUs) all have significant headroom except for BSL. The assessment of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment under BSL is most sensitive to the achievement of the 2018
budget. Budgets comprise forecasts of revenue, siaff costs and overheads based on current and anticipated market
coaditions that have been considered and approved by the Board. Whilst the Group is able to manage most of the costs
of BSL, the revenue projections are inherently uncertain due to unstable market conditions. Revenue of BSL is most
sensitive to government speading.

A 10% decline in the recoverable amount of BSL's CGU would result in an additional impairment charge of SR i.4
million. Other CGUs would not be impacted by such a decline.

Fair vaine of interest acquired in a JV and impairntent of embodied goodwill
As required by IFRS 10, the Group recognized the interest it acquired in: Amiblu at fair value. The key assumptions used
to determine the fair value of the interest in Amiblu are disclosed in note 2.2.

Further, management of the Group is of the opinion that the valuation of its imterest in Amiblu which was conducted as
a1 2% August 2017 is still valid to defend the carrying amount of the interest in Amiblu including embodied goodvwitl as
at 31 December 2017 as the valuation has recently been concluded and no significant adverse events occurred
subsequent to the date of the valuation,

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method (*POC™) in accounting for its fixed-price contracts to perform
contracting work. Use of POC requires the Group to estimate the total costs to complete a contract, If the total estimated
costs were 10% higher than management’s estimates, the amount of revenue recognised in the year ended 31 Deecember
2017 woutd be decreased by SR 21 miltion.

Impairment of trade receivables

The current provision for impairment of rade receivable of SR 224.5 million relates to the Group's exposure o credit
risk on trade receivables. Management estimates the impairment of trade receivables for each account balance and takes
into consideration the following factors:

- The Group's possession of documentary evidence to support the existence of the balance
« The solvency of the customer

Additional information about the Group's exposure to credit risk are provided in notes 8 and 10.
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

8.
8.2,

8.2.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Risk Management of Financial Instruments
The Group’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market price risk.

Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument may fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk on its bank balances, trade receivables, non-curvent
receivables and receivables from refated parties as follows,

31 December 31 December I January

2017 2016 2016

SR 000 SR 000 SR 000

Cash at Bank 119,552 116,064 138,176
Trade Receivables - current 795,519 946,645 1,237,617
Trade Receivables - non-current 463,465 526,868 496,348
Loans to equity accounted invesiments 40,419 25,666 37,138
1418955 1,615,243 1.909.279

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Credit risk on receivables and bank balances is limited by:
- (Cash balances are heid with banks with sound credit ratings.
- The receivables are shown net of allowances for impairment of trade receivables.

The Group manages credit risk with respect to receivabies from customers by menitoring them in accordance with
defined policies and procedures. The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by setting credit
limits for individual customers znd by monitoring outstanding receivables on an ongeing basis. The receivables
balances are monitored with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The five largest
customers account for approximately 21.3% of outstanding trade receivables at 31 December 2017.

Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell a financial asset quickiy at an amount close to
its fair value. Following are the contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of financial liabilities.

31 December 2017

Carrying Less than 1 1 yearto 5 Move than 5
amount year years years
SR ‘000 SR 600 SR '000 SR '000

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 1,585,637 1,265,228 320,409 -
Trade and other payables 304,711 504,711 - -
Other ron-current liabilities 14,038 - 14,038 B
Interest rate swap 1,506 “ 1,506 -

2,105,892 1.769.939 335,953 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BDECEMBER 2017

8.

8.2

8.2.3

824

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Risk Management of Finaneial Instruments (Continued)
31 December 2016

Carzying Less than 1 | yearto5 More than 3
amount year years Yyears
SR "G00 SR '000 SR '000 SR '000

Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 1,771,808 1,306,245 465,563 11,172
Trade and other payables 525,294 525,294 - -
Other non-current liabilities 15,161 - 15,161 -
Interest rate swap 2,143 - 2,143 -

2,314,406 1.831,539 482,867 11,192

1 January 2016
Carrying Less than 1 1 yearto5 More than 5

amount year years years
SR '000 SR '000 SR 000 SR '000
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,987,194 1,560,466 426,728 9,930
Trade and other payables 750,982 750,982 - -
Other non-cutrent liabilities 18,966 - 19,966 -
2,758,142 2.311.448 446,694 9.930

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and other credit (acilities
are available to meet the Group’s future commitments. The Group’s terms of sales require amounts to be paid either
on a cash on delivery or on a terms basis.

Market Risk:

Market price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, and will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and contro! market risk exposures
within aceeptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Group uses derivatives to manage market risks exceeding aceeptable parameters. The Group seeks to apply hedge
accounting to marage volatility in profit or joss.

Currency Risk:

Cuzrency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments may fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency tisk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a
currency that's not the Group’s reporting currency. The Group exposure to foreign currency risk is primarily limited
to transactions in United State Dollass (*USD™) and Euro (“EUR™). The Group’s management believes that the
exposure to cusrency risk associated with USD is Himited as the Group's cursency is pegged to USD. The fluctuation
in exchange rates against Euro is monitored on a continuous basis. Quantitative data regarding the Group’s exposuze
to currency risk arising from EUR s as follows:
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 PECEMBER 2017

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
8.2. Risk Management of Financial Instrements (Continued)
8.2.4 Currency Risk (Continued):
EUR Equivalent SR

31 December 2617 000! Ry
Cash and cash equivalents 9,370 42,156
Trade receivables 40,162 180,701
Trade payables (5,781) (26,009)
Net Statement of Financial Position exposure 43,751 196.848

EUR Eguivalent SR

31 December 2016 '000* 000"
Cash and cash equivalents 10,899 43,132
Trade receivables 60,808 240,641
Trade payables (5,895) (23,3300
Short term borrowings 779 (3,082)
Long term borrowings (864) (3419
Net Statement of Financial Position exposure 64.169 253.942

EUR Equivalent SR

1 January 2016 000’ 000’
Cash and cash equivalenis 8,364 34,059
‘Trade receivables 57,942 235,947
Trade payables (12,288) (50,036}
Short term borrowings {1,091} (4,442)
Long term borsowings (622) {2,335)
Net Statement of Finaneial Position exposure 52,305 212,993

A strengthening/(weakening) of the EUR by 10% against all other currencies would have offected the
measurement of financial instruments dencminated in foreign currency and would have increased/(decreased)
equity by the amounts shown below

31 December 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016
SR '000 SR 000 SR '000
tmpact of 10% increase in EUR on equity 19,685 25,394 21,299
Impact of 10% decrease in EUR on equity (19,685) (25,394) (21,299
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
8.2, Risk Management of Financial Enstruments (Continued)

8.2.5 Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the exposure associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing interest rates on the
Group’s financial position and cash flows, Variable rate financial liabitities as at the reporting date amounted (o
SR 1,586 million (31 December 2016: SR 1,772 million, 1 January 2016: SR 1,987 million).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the income to reasonably possible changes in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant

Increase /
decrease in basis
points of interest Effect on profit

rates for the year

SR '000

31 December 2017 +100 (14,727)
=100 14,727

31 December 2016 +100 {(15,404)
-i00 15,404

Management manitors the changes in interest rates and utilizes interest vate swaps to manage interest rate risk
exceeding certain parameters.

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December | January

2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Cash on hand 1,181 1,623 1,789
Cash at bank 39,870 86,712 132,111
Time deposits 28,501 27,727 4,276
119,552 116,064 138,176

Time deposits are held by commercial banks and yield financial income at prevailing market rates.

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December 1 January

2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Trade receivables - third parties 1,413,510 1,665,353 1,876,473
Trade receivables - related parties 69,955 54,109 50,806
1,483,465 1,719,462 1,927,279

Less: provision for impairment {224,481) (245,949) {193,214)
1,258,984 1,473,513 1,733,965
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued}

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. TFrade receivables include
retentions receivable of SR 130 million (31 December 20i6: SR 109.5 million and 1 January 2016: SR 81.7 million).
Retentions receivable are also non-interest bearing and are generally collectable at the end of each project.

Trade receivables are classified into current and non-current receivables as follows:

31 December 31 December 1 January

2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Current receivables 795,519 946,645 1,237,617
Non-current receivables 463,465 526,868 496,348
1,258,984 1,473,513 1,733,965

The non-current portion of trade receivables represents balances that management estimates it will collect after one year
from the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. Management expecls 1o collect the majority of these
balances through Jegal proceedings.

The movement in the provision for impairment is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 20i6
SR'000 SR'0GG
1 January 245,949 193,314
(Reversals) f additions (6,779) 78,007
Deconsolidation (8,685) -
Write-offs (7,476) (24,752)
Currency translation adjustments 1,466 {620)
31 DPecember 224,481 245,949
An aged analysis of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows:
Past due buf not impaired
Neither past
due nor 181-365 366-730
impaired <130 days days days > 730 days Total
SR'000 SR'00G SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
2017 3,846 433,713 61,014 238,591 521,820 1,258,984
2016 9,259 357,496 322,046 268,562 516,150 1,473,513

The Group records a provision for impairment considering various factors including age of the receivable balances,
financial condition of the customers, economic conditions of the countries of domicile, etc.

As at 31 December 2017, no frade receivables were collateralized against bank borrowings (2016: SR 46.4 million).
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11,

12,

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 DPecember 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Advances to suppliers 8,605 17,316 10,750
Prepaid expenses 68,061 98,922 207,340
Others 5,637 3,136 -
82,303 119,374 218,090
INVENTORIES
31 December 31 December i January
2017 2016 2016
SR'00¢ SR000 SR'0G0
Raw materials 148,752 288,709 390,022
Work in process 255,415 194,009 272,853
Supplies, not held for sale 95,784 10%,1Z1 106,894
Finished producits 241,864 281,993 447,745
Goods in transit 1,041 7,781 6,373
742,856 873,613 1,223,887

As at 31 December 2017, no inventory was piedged against the bank borrowings (2016: SR 53.6 million).

During 2017, SR 6.8 million (2016: SR 26.3 million) was recognized as an expense to write down cost of inventaries to

net realisable value, This is recognised in cost of revenue.
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THE SAUDI ARABIAN AMIANTIT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December 1 January
Note 2017 2016 206
SR'000 SR'G00 SR'000
Interests in foint ventures
Amiblu Holding GmbH ("Amiblu"} A 274,143 - -
Enternational Water Distribution Co. ("Tawzea™) a8 63,825 55,579 48,123
Other joint ventures C 16,044 21,676 35,652
Total interests in joint ventures 354,012 77,255 83,775
Investments in associates:
Amiantit Qatar Pipe Co. Ltd. ("AQAP") D 38,617 32,454 26,326
Other associates E 23,778 17,034 21,483
Total investment in associates 62,395 49,488 47,809
Total equity accounted investments 416,407 126,743 131,584

A. Amiblz
Amiblu is a joint venture in which the Group has joint control and a 50% ownership interest. Amiblu is registered in
Austria and is not publicly listed. Amiblu and its subsidiaries ("Amiblu Group") are engaged in pipe manufacturing and
related technologies and their principal place of business is the European Union. Amiblu Group has a 20% strategic
investment in an associated company based in the United States of America that is also engaged in pipe manufacturing.

The following table summarizes the financial information of Amiblu Group as included in its own eonsofidated
financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustment at acquisition. The table also reconciles the summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in Amiblu Grougp.

31 Decemher

20617
SR'000
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents of SR 33.0 million 413,562
Non-current assets 409,153
Current liabilities, including bank borrowings of SR 140.9 million (350,159)
Non current liabilities, including long term borrowings of SR 29.0 millien (70,161)
Equity 402,395
Group's share in equity, 50% 201,198
Gocedwill 72,945
Group's carrying amount of the investment 274,143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20617

13. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)
A. Amiblu (Continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss of Amiblu Group for the period from 29 August 2017, the date of acquisition, to

31 December 2017:
Period from

29 August
2017 to 31
December
2017
SR'000
Revenue 541,300
Depreciation and amortization -
Interest expense (4,805)
Income {ax expense 1,818
Profit for the period {36,688)
Total comprehensive income {30,688)
Group's share of total comprehensive income, 50% (15,344)
The movement in the interest in Amibiu is as follows: 017
SR'000
209 August 2017 289,600
Share of profit (15,344)
Currency translation adjustments (113
31 December 2017 274,143
B. Tawzea

Tawzea is a joint venture in which the Group has joint control and a 50% ownership interest. Tawzea is registered in the
Kingdom Saudi Arabia and is not publicly listed. Tawzea is principally engaged in offering services related to
construction, operation, and maintenance of pubfic water & sewage services. The following table summarizes the
finencial information of Tawzea as included in its own financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustment at
acquisition. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carying amount of the Group's
interest in Tawzea.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

B. Tawzea {Continued)

31 December 31 December i January
2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents of SR 10.1
millicn { 31 December 2016: SR 14.2 million and 1 January 20£6:
SR 10.2 million) 44,799 40,638 35,128
Non-curreat assets 224,080 229,525 225,799
Current liabilities, including bank borrowings of SR 22.5 million
(31 December 2016: SR 28.4 million and { January 2016: SR 21.7
miilion) . {80,460) (73,916) {63,802)
Non-current liabifities, incJuding long term borrowings of SR 56.8
million (31 December 2016; SR 83.3 million and 1 January 2016:
SR 99.2 million) {60,768} (85,089) (100,879
Equity 127,651 111,158 96,246
Group's share in equity 50% {31 December 2016: 50% and
1 January 2016: 50%) 63,825 35,519 48,123
Group's carrying amount of the investrzent 63,825 55,579 48,123
Summarised statement of profit or loss of Tawzea for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:
2017 2016
SRY000 SR'000
Revenue 268,906 230,723
Depreciation and amertization 12,903 12,759
Interest expense 4,951 4,820
Zakat expense - -
Profit for the year 18,178 14,912
Total comprehensive income 18,178 14,912
Group's share of profit-30% (2016: 50%) 9,089 7,456
The movement in the interest in Tawzea is as follows:
2017 2016
SR'$00 SR'000
| Jannary 55,579 48,123
Share of profit 9,089 7,456
Share of other comprehensive income (843) -
31 December 63,825 55,579
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NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS (Continued)

C. Other joint ventures
The Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint ventures.
these jointl vensures is as follows:

[ January

Share of results

Impaiment

Currency translation adjustments

31 December

The movement in the interests in

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
21,676 35,652
(4,947) (5,681)

- (6,504)

(685) (1791
16,044 21,676

Summarized financial information of these joint ventures, based on their most recent available financial information is

as follows:
Group's
Country of Net income ownership
incorperation Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss) interest
Name SR'000 SR'060 SR'000 SR'000 %
2017:
Subor Turkey 302,672 289,907 371,785 6,394 50%
Amitech Morocco Morocco 125309 105,987 40,407 (16,288) 0%
2016:
Subor Turkey 280,615 273,858 306,901 3,857 50%
Amitech Morocco Morocco 134,514 99,401 51,705 {15,219) 50%
D. AQAP

AQAP is an associated company in which the Group owns 40% of its shares. AQAP is registered and conducts its main

aperations in Qatar. AQAP is not publicly listed.

The following table summarises the financial information of AQAP as included in its own financial statements, adjusted
for fair value adjustments at acquisition. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying

amount of the Group's investment in AQAP.

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabifities
Non-current liabilities

Equity

Group's share of equity (40%)

31 December

2017 2016
SR'008 SR'000
144,583 120,715

99,335 106,855
(132,163} (123,775)
(15,212) (22.660)
96.543 8:.135
38,617 32454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13, EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS (Continuned)
D. AQAP (Continued)

For the year ended 31
December
2017 2016
SR'000 SR'G00
Revenue 151,045 138,539
Profit for the year 15,406 15,319
Total comprehensive inceme 15,406 15,319
40% of total comprehensive income 6,163 6,128
The mavement in the investment in AQAP is as follows:
2017 2016
SR'000 SR'00¢
1 January 32,454 26,326
Share of profit 6,163 6,128
31 December 38,617 32,454

. Other associates

The Group also has investments in a number of individually immaterial associates. The movement in the investments in

these associates is as follows.

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
£ January 17,034 21,483
Additions 3,302 -
Share of results 5,962 191
Dividends {2,878) (976}
Impaimment - (3431
Currency transiation: adjustments 358 (233)
31 December 23,778 17,034
Summarized financiat information of these associates, based on their most recent available financial information is as
follows:
Group's
Country of ownership
incorporation Assets  Liabilities Revenues Net income interest
Name SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 %
2007
Eastern Gas KSA 94,289 18,922 49,520 7,760 13%
Amensouss Muoroces 185,291 119,663 27,599 7461 15%
2016
Eastern Gas KSA 100,125 32,518 57,51t 10,186 13%
Amensouss Morocco 215,837 151,303 28,253 5919 15%
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14. PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Foreign
Deconsolida currency
tion/ translation
I January  Additions disposals _ adjustments 31 December
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
2017
Cost
Land 209,351 - (14,068) 1,266 196,549
Buildings and land improvements 401,423 4,251 (110,190) 4,440 299,924
Plans, machinery and equipment 1,223,263 5,548 (345,676} 6,550 889,685
Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment 88,673 753 {37,100} 3362 55,688
Construction in progress 66,263 13,902 {26,356) 107 50,916
1,988,973 21,454 {533,390) 15,725 1,492,762
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Land (150,000} - - - (150,000)
Buildings and land improvements (236,939} (12,472) 59,867 (2,071 (191,621)
Plant, machinery and equipment (879,475) (47,983) 328,086 (9,549) (608,921)
Fugniture, fixtures and office
equipment (63,513) {1,813} 26,797 {3,244} (41,775}
(1,329,929) {62,268) 414,750 {14,870y (992,317)
Met book valae 659,044 500,445
2016
Cost
Land 226,949 229 (17,277 (550) 209,351
Buildings and land improvements 401,944 8,782 (7,699) (1,604) 401,423
Plaat, machinery and equipment 1,370,168 48,185 (190,154) (4,890) 1,223,263
Fumiture, fixtures and office
equipment 91,056 7,932 (9,231) {1,084) 88,673
Construction in progress 74,345 2,472 (10,460} (94) 66,263
2,164,462 67,600 (234,861} (8,228) 1,988,973
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
Land (150,060) - - - {150,000)
Buildings and land improvements (243,487) (9,295) 14,666 1,177 (236,939
Plant, machinery and equipment (1,018,276) (64,186) 197,380 5,607 (879.475)
Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment {66,375} (2,545) 4,668 737 (63,515)
(1,478,138) {76,026) 216,714 7,521 (1,329,929}
Net book value 686,324 659,044
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

- The Group performed its annual impairment test in December 2017 for its CGUs. Ail CGUs had significant head-room
except for BSL CGU. The recoverable amount of BSL CGU of SR 14.3 million as at 31 December 2017 has been
determined based cn a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from a budget approved by the board
covering 2018. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 9.5% and cash flows beyond 2018 are
extrapolated using a 1.0% growth rate. Tt was concluded that the fair value less costs of disposal cannet be measured
reliably. As a result of this analysis, management has recognised an impairment charge of SR 5 milion in the current
year against property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of SR 19.3 million as at 31 December 2017. The
impairment charge is recorded within cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with a net book value of SR 59.5 million (2015: 59.8 mitlion) are
constructed on land parcels feased under various operating lease agreements at nominal annual rates from the Saudi

Asabian government under renewable operating leases.

- The Group owns two parcels of industrial land in Dammam since 1971. The book value of the two parcels in the
Group’s accounting records is SR 1.4 million. The fair value of these two parcels of land based on the most recent

independent valuations made by the Group iz 2016 was SR 323.4 million.

_ The Group owns a parcel of industrial land in feddah which was acquired in 2009 through the acquisition, from a
related parly, of a subsidiary that owns this Jand. The ownership of the parcel (s being contested in the Saudi Arabian
judicial system. The gross value of this parcel of land, before deducting any impairment provision, as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was SR 150 million and management of the Group has made an impairment provision for the full value
of the parcel at the acquisition date. The net book value of property, plant and equipment constructed over this parce! of

land as at 31 December is as follows:

Buildings and tand improvements
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
30,277 33,406
36,604 42,007

394 486
67,275 75,899

Management of the Group believes that the outcome of the litigation process will not impact the carrying amounts or

useful lives of property, plant and equipment constructed over this parcel of land.

- No Property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2017 (2016 SR 39.6 million) was pledged against the bank

borrowings,

- No borrowing costs were capitalized during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

- Capiral work in progress at 31 December 2017 mainly represents advances fo suppliers for purchase of machinery and

equipment,
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15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other non-current assets represents assets that are immaterial individually and in aggregate. The details of other non-

current assets are as follows:

31 December 3§ December | January
Note 2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
Investment properties 8,250 8,250 8,250
Intangible assets 9.690 8,995 13,251
Loans to equity accounted investrents 21 40,419 25,666 37138
58,359 42,911 58,639
16. BORROWINGS
16.1 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Short-term borrowings comprise the foilowing:
31 December 31 December | January
2017 2016 2016
SR'000 SR'00G SR'000
Bank overdrafts - 3,078 3,234
Short-term bank loans 1,062,785 1,138,852 1,554,150
1,062,785 1,141,930 1,557,384

These represent borrowing facilities obtained from various commercial banks and bear financial charges at prevailing
market rates which are based on inter-bank offered rates plus a fixed margin. Management intends to roll-over the

maturity of short-term loans as they mature.

The carrying values of the short-term borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Saudi Riyals
Euros
Others

31 December 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016

SR'000 SR'C00 SR'000
1,062,785 1,138,857 1,553,268

- 1,006 2,229

- 2,067 1,887

1,062,785 1,141,930 1,557,384
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16.
16.2

BORROWINGS (Continued)
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long term borrowings comprise the following:

Commercial bank loans
Loaas from a non-controlling interest

Current portion shown under current liabilities

Non-current portion shown under non-current liabilities

Commercial bank lpans:

31 Precember 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016

SR'000 SR'G0D SR'000
522,852 620,386 419,684

- 9,492 10,126

522,852 629,878 429,810
(202,443) {164,315) {3,082}
320,409 465,563 426,728

The Group has obtained loan facilities from various commercial banks. These loans generally bear financial charges
based on inter-bank offered rates plus a fixed margin. The aggregate maturities of the loans outstanding at 31

December 2017, based on their respective repayment schedules, are repayable at dates from 2018 to 2021.

Loans from a non-controlling interest:

These represent US dollars denominated loans from a non-controiling interest of a foreign subsidiary, These foans did
not carry any financial charges and were payable in unequal quarterly instalments ending in 2017.

The carrying values of the long-term borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Saudi Riyals
Euros
Other

The maturity profile of long-term borrowings is as follows:

Years ending 3§ December:
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

31 December 31 December | January
2017 2016 2016

SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
522,352 603,341 403,083

- 3419 2,535

- 23,118 24,192

522,352 629,878 429,810
31 December 31 December i January
2017 206 2016

SR'000 SR'000 SR'000

- - 3,082

- 164,315 104,089

202,443 165,168 102,293
184,659 165,020 102,01%
136,527 118,185 102,892
5223 12,408 15,443

- 3,102 -

- 1,680 -

522,852 620,878 429,810
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16. BORROWINGS (Continued)
16.3 BREACHES OF LOAN COVENANTS
The covenants of certain of the short-term and long-term borrowing facitities require the Group to maintain a certain
level of financia} conditions, require lenders' prior approval for dividends distribution above a certain amount, and
limit the amouat of annual capital expenditure and certain other requirements. The Group has breached some of the
financial covenants stated in the credit facility agreements with commercial banks. The main financial covenants the
Group has breached are as follows:
Covenant Requirements
Total liabilities to tangible net worth 2009 - 250%
Current ratio 100% - 125%
Minimuwm shareholders' equity SR 950m - SR 1,312.5m
None of the Group's lenders exercised their rights to cancel credit facilities or accelerate repayment of future
payments. Management of the Group believes that the breaches will not affect the maturity profile of its debt or the
availability of credit.
17.  ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December | January
2017 2016 2016
SR'006 SR'000 SR'00D
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 9,301 17,008 24,046
Advances from custorers 103,675 120,417 159,123
Accrued sales agency fees 9,929 17,871 16,056
Accrued financial charges 30,790 21,324 19,276
Other accrued expenses and other payables 42,368 61,848 71,780
196,063 238,468 200,286
18. ZAXKAT AND INCOME TAX

Components of zakat base:

The Company and its Saudi Arabian subsidiaries are subject to zakat, Zakat is payable at 2.5% of the greater of the
approximate zakat base and adjusted net income. Income tax is payable at the rates applicable 1o foreign subsidiaries.
The significant components of the zakat base of each company under zakat regulations principally comprise of
shareholders' equity, provisions at the beginning of year, long-term borrowings and adjusted net income, less a
deduction for the zakatable net book vatue of property, plant and equipment, investments and certain other items.

Zakat and income taxes charged to the conselidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 Becember:

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
Current zikat and income tax charges 29,783 40,114
Adjustments in respect of zakat and income
tax of previous years (6,642) 2351
23,141 42,4635
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18.

ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in the zakat and income tax payable for the years ended 31 December are as follows:

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
1 January 94,463 82,526
Charge for the year 23,141 42,465
Payments (12,341) (30,528)
31 December 105,263 94,463

Status of certificates and assessments:

The Company and the Saudi Arabian subsidiaries have received final or restricted zakat and income tax certificates
for the years up to 2014, The Company has received final assessments frem General Authority for Zakat and Income

Tax ("GAZT") until 2009. The assessments for the years from 2010 to 2014 are yet to be raised by GAZT.

Differences between accounting profit and zakatable / taxable profit

The following items are included in accounting profit but not included in zakatable / taxable profit:
- Impairment provisions for receivables

- Write down of the cost of inventories to net realisable values

- Impairment provisions for property, plant and equipment

- Charges related to employees’ terminal benefits

The following items are included in zakatable / taxable profit but not included in accounting profit:
- Receivables written off

- Inventories at net realisable value sold or written off

- Depreciation of impaired property, plant and equipment

- Payments towards employees’ terminal benefits
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1%, EMPLOYEES' TERMINAL BENEFITS

The movemens i employees' terminal benefits, defined benefits plan, during the year is as follows:

2017 2016
SR '600 SR '000
| January 67,619 66,816
Expense charged to profit or loss 11,397 14,144
Actuarial remeasurement charged to OCI 767 90
Payments (12,574) {14,031)
31 December 66,609 67,019
The expense charged to profit or loss comprises:
2017 2016
SR 000 SR 000
Current service cost 8,287 11,844
Interest cost 3,110 2,300
Cost recognized in profit or loss 11,397 14,144

Significant actuarial assumptions:
As at 31 December

2017 2016
Discount factor used 4.60% 3.50%
Salary increase rate 4.70% £.00%
Rates of employee tumover Maoderate Moderate
Sensitivity analysis of key actuarial assumptions are as follows:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Yo SR '000 % SR 000
Discount rate
Increase + 1.50% 64,724 +0.25% 66,020
Decrease -0.50% 68,602 -0.25% 68,046
Salary growth rate
Increase + 0.50% 68,575 + 1% 71,267
Decrease - 0.50% 64,733 - 1% 63,157
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20. WARRANTY PROVISIONS

1 January

{Reversals} / additions

Utilizations and adjustments

Foreign currency translation adjustments

31 December

21. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
19,419 13,338
(6,000) 7,253
(5,275) {1,438)

231 266

8,375 19419

Note | provides information abaut the Group's structure, including details of the subsidiaries and the Company. The
following table provides the total amount of material transactions that have been entered into with related parties:

Associates

AFEC 2017
2016

AQAP 2017
2016

Amensouss 2617
2016

Joint ventures

Amiblu 2017
2016

Amitech Morocco 2017
206

Subor 2017
2016

Others 2017
2016

* The amounts are classified as trade receivables and trade payables, respectively.

Loans from / to related parties

Associates

Amitech Morocco 2017
2016

Others 2017
2016

Joint ventures

Amiblu 2017
2016
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Parchases
from /
payments Amounts due Amounts due
Sales to made to from related to related
related parties _ related parties parties® parties®
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000
- - 220 -
- (4) 2 -
11,244 - 14,801 -
14,761 (12,607) 3,801 -
2,358 - 2,387 .
897 - 7,636 -
4 - 15,226 -
1,705 (93} 15,191 -
- {6,056) 4,304 -
- - 10,399 -
- - 3,768 -
Interest
received by/ Amounts due
(paid to} from/(to)
related parties  related parties
SR'000 SR'000
250 10,138
(75) (7,103)
- (9,492)
144 30,282
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21,

22

23,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

2017 2016

SR'000 SR'000
Short term entployee benefits 5,806 5,887
Terminal benefits 8,250 8,670
‘Total compensation paid to key management personnel 14,056 14,557

The amounts disciosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the year for the top five
executives,

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of the Company comprised 115.5 million ordinary shares stated at SR 10 per share. All
shares are issued and fully paid. (31 December 2016 and | January 2016: 115.5 million ordinary shares stated at SR
10 per share).

EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN AND RESERVE:

The Company has implemented an Employee Share Ownership Plan {"ESOP™), which provides an award for service
to certain levels of employees effective | January 20i2. These employees, subject to their subscription to ESOP,
after completing employment with the Group for a period of three years and maintaining a required level of
performance, were awarded shares of the Company, at no cost, upon the vesting date during 2013, The total nember
of shares awarded in 2015 was 593,000 shares.

The Company has recorded expenses in 2016 amounting to Saudi Riyals 1.1 million for such options.

Theze was no movement in the ESOP and reserve during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,

During 2012, the Company purchased 2.5 million of its own shares, through a financial institution, for the purpose of
the ESOP which have been recorded under “Employees shares program and reserve” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The ESOP and reserve represents the value of the remaining shares held by the trustee for future options to be
offered to the employees of the Company. Management is currently in the precess of formalizing the future option
plans.

The remaining shares not awarded through the first plan as described above, and amounting fo 1.9 million shares
with a cost of S8R 16.0 miliion will be assigned to a new ESOP, which is expected to be scheduled to span over the
years 2018 and 2019 with related options maturing in 2019, The necessary approvals are under submission at related
competent authorities.
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24.

26.

27.

INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had an interest rate swap ("IRS") contract with a local commercial bank in relation
to loans with variable profit rates. As at 31 December 2017, the nominal amount of the IRS contract was SR 137.9
million (31 December 2016: SR 231.6 million). The fair value of the IRS contract has declined as at 31 December 2017

to SR 1.5 million {31 December 2016: a decline of SR 2.1 million).

The Group accounts for the IRS contract as an effective cash flow hedge. Accordingly, the Group recorded the decline
in fair value of the IRS contract in other comprehensive income and a corresponding non-current liability was recorded

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Professional services

Travelling

[nformation technology and communications
Depreciation and amortization

Repairs and maintenance

Others

OTHER INCOME, NET

Foreign exchange differences

Gain from settlement of debts

Reversal of provision for impatrment of trade receivables
Gain en disposal of property, plant and equipment
Reversal of utitities provisions

Miscellaneous income

FINANCE COSTS

tnterest on borrowings
Interest rate swap differences
Unwinding of discount on employees' terminal benefits
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2017 20t6
SR'000 SR'000
45,791 50,381
- 78,007
25,959 30,294
3,460 4,102
11,875 12,674
8,353 6,791
2,168 3,055
35,791 36,087
133,397 221,391
2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
{7.888) (2,703)
- 16,541
6,779 -
72 .
2,165 -
5,687 6,114
6,815 19,952
2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
102,724 98,796
3,112 -
3,119 2,300
108,946 101,096
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28. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION, IMPAIRMENT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

29.

36.

31

INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016

SR'000 SRGO0
Included in cost of revenue:
Depreciation 48,932 53,395
Amortisation 663 363
Impaiment 4,982 28,081
Included in selling, general and administrative expenses:
Depreciation 8,354 6,791
Amortisation 38 30
Included in other income / {(expenses):
Net foreign exchange differences (7,888) (2,703}
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

2017 2016

SR'000 SR'000
Included in cost of revenue:
Wages and salaries 200,062 255,084
Social security costs 2,306 2,268
Terminal costs 5,436 7,981
Included in selling, general and administrative expenses:
Wages and salaries 39,610 41,221
Social security costs 3,350 4,225
Terminal costs 2,831 3,863
Share-based payment expenses - 1,072
Total employee benefits expenses 253,615 316,614

LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 have been computed by dividing the loss from
continuing coperations and net loss for each year by the weighted average number of 113,564,309 shares outstanding
during both vears. The Company does not have any difutive instruments.

DIVIDENDS

During 2017, no dividends were declared or paid (2016: the Company’s General Assembly declared dividends
amounting to SR 75.1 million which were subsequently paid in 2016).
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32

33.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating lease commitments
The Group has entered into operating leases on certain industrial lands with lease terms between 1 and 20 years.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December were as follows:

2017 2016

SR'000 SR'000

Within one year 173 173

Afier one year but not more than five years 692 692

More than five years 1,357 1,530
2,222 2,395

Commitments for capital expenditure:
The capital expenditure coniracted by the Group but not yet incurred at 31 December 2017 was approximately SR 1.8
miliion (31 December 2016: SR 0.8 mitlion).

Contingencies

The Group owns a parcel of industrial land in Jeddah which it has fully impaired and which was acquired in 2009
through the acquisition, from a related party, of a subsidiary that owns this fand. The ownership of this parcel is being
contested in the Saudi Arabian judicial system. Management of the Group betieves that the cutcome of the litigation
process will not result in any Habilities.

Guarantees:

The Group was contingently liable for bank guarantees issued in the normal course of the business amounting SR 220.2
million as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: SR 454.7 million). The Company, collectively with other
shareholders of equity accounted investments, is also contingently liable for corporate guarantees amounting to SR
180.1 million at 31 December 2017 {31 December 2016: SR 184.5 million} in relation to the borrowing facilities of
related joint ventures and associated companies.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up 1o the date of issuance of the Group’s
financial statemeats are disclosed befow. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become
effective.

IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces JAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and alf previous versions of [FRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is
not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited
excentions.

The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate comparative information.
During 2017, the Group has performed a high leve! impact assessment of all three aspects of IFRS 9. This assessment is
based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable and supportable
information being made availabie 1o the Group in 2018 when the Group will adopt IFRS 9. Overall, the Group expects
no significant impact on its statement of financial position and equity except for the effects of applying the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9. The Group expeets an increase in the loss allowance resulting in a negative impact on equity.
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33.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continuned)

{a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect & significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the classification and
measurement requirements of [FRS 9,

(b} Impairment

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all of its debt securities, loans and trade receivables,
either on a 12-month or lifetime basis, The Group wiil apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses on all trade receivables. The impact of the new approach has not been guantified yet.

(c) Hedge accounting

The Group determined that all existing hedge relationships that are currently designated as effective hedging
relationships will continue to qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 9. As IFRS 9 does not change the general
principles of how an entity accounts for effective hedges, applying the hedging requirements of IFRS 9 will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014, and amended in April 2016, and establishes a five-step model] to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers, Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to & customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full
retrospective application or a medified refrospective application is required for annuat periods beginning on or after |
January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date
uging the full retrospective method. During 2017, the Group performed a preliminary assessment of IFRS 15, This
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject jo changes arising form further reasonable
and supportable information being made available to the Group in 2018 when the Group will adopt IFRS 15. Overall,
the Group expects no signiffcant impact on its consolidated statements of financial position and profit or loss.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between [FRS [0 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary
that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from
the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate
or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint
venture. The 1ASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the
amendments must apply them prospectively. The Group will apply these amendments when they become effective.

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2
The 1ASB issued amendments to [FRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three main areas: the effects of vesting

conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based
payment transaction with net settlement features for withhoiding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity
settled.

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective application
is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Jantary 2018, with early application pennitied. The Group expects no significant
impact on its consolidated statement of financial position and equity.
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STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces [AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. FFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of
“low-value” assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a [ease term of [2 months or less).
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease paymens (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease lisbility and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset.

Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the
lease term, or a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantiafly unchanged from today's accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will
coninue te classify all leases using the same classification principles as in [AS 17 and distinguish between two types of
leases: operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under TAS 17,

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not
before an entity applies JFRS 15, A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
maodified retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs,

In 2018, the Group will continue to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements,

Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments to IAS 40

The amendments clarify when an entity skould transfer property, including property uader construction or development
into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in
management's intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. Entities should apply
the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting pericd in
which the entity first applies the amendments, An entity should reassess the classification of property held at that date
and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application in
accordance with IAS 8 is oaly pennitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. This is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, Early application of the amendments is permitted and must be disclosed.
The Group will apply amendments when they become effective. However, since the Group’s current practice is in line
with the clarifications issued, the Group does not expect any effect on its consalidated firancial statements.

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (issued in December 2016)
These improvements include:
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34.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies tha, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income {or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary Habitity refating o
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initiafly recognises the ron-monetary
asset or non-monetary lability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, then the enfity must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may appiy the Interpretation
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognised on or after:

(i}  The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation; or
(if}y  The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018. Early application of
interpretation is permitted and must be disclosed. However, since the Group’s current practice is in line with the
[nterpretation, the Group does not expect any effect on its conselidated financial statements,

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Fax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax {reatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 and does not apply 1o taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically
addresses the following:

- Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

- The assumpticns an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

- How an entity determines taxabie profit (1ax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
- How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain fax treatment separately or together with one or more
other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed.
The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition
reliefs are available. The Group will apply the Interpretation from its effective date. Since the Group operates in a
complex multinational tax environment, applying the Interpretation may affect its consolidated financial statements and
the required disclosures. In addition, the Group may need to establish processes and procedures to obtain information
that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on a timely basis.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28 Jumada
IT §439H corresponding to [6 March 2018G.
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